MSES II/B Draft RFP Q&As

NNG06140050J


Questions on MSES II/B Draft RFP
Q1.  In L.14.3 Subfactor C, Mission Suitability Volume, it is stated that: 

“At any given time while performing under this contract, Offerors should assume approximately 100 individuals for the first year and a total of approximately 250 individuals for all five years. Note: For planning purposes, the Government has onsite space available to accommodate approximately 50 individuals for the first year and a total of approximately 120 individuals over the five year period.” 

a)  Is it correct to interpret this as follows:

At any time during the first year of the contract, Offerors should assume approximately 100 individuals.  At any time during each of the remaining years of the contract, Offerors should assume approximately 250 individuals.  Note: For planning purposes, the Government has onsite space available to accommodate approximately 50 individuals for the first year and approximately 120 individuals during each of the remaining years of the contract.

b)  If this interpretation is correct, it is requested that you reword this section of the final RFP to make this meaning clear.  
c)  If this interpretation is not correct, please clarify the meaning of the quoted text, above, for the various years of the contract.

A1.  Your interpretation is correct.  The language will be further clarified in the final RFP.

Q2.  L.14.3 Subfactor C, Management Plan
a)  To facilitate the development of a meaningful Phase-in Plan, please identify and describe any tasks that would be part of the phase-in?  
b)  Please also provide the number of individuals to be included in these tasks.  
c)  Please also provide the SOW elements to be included in these tasks.

A2.  NASA intends to remove the phase-in requirement in the final RFP.   NASA/GSFC does not plan to move any task from the current contract over to this contract.  We will start out with all new tasks.
Q3.   Reference: L.14.3 Subfactor C, Management Plan 
Please identify and describe specific tasks or the kinds of work, by SOW function, that this contract would be expected to handle during the first year. 

A3. Any and all SOW functions could be potentially written as a task in the first year.
Q4.  Reference:  L.14.3, Subfactor C.  Management Plan and M.4, Subfactor C.  Management Plan
L.14.3 states “The Offeror shall discuss plans for staffing a qualified workforce including any incumbent capture and provide the basis for this capture rate....”  Section M also requests that the Offeror discuss incumbent capture.  

Please explain the meaning of “incumbent capture” in this situation where MSES-II/B is not a follow-on contract.
A4.  This wording is incorrect.  The RFP will be revised to remove any reference to incumbent capture.
Q5.  Reference: Sections L.16(a), Past Performance Volume and L.12(b), Proposal Preparation – General Instructions
Are the lists of terminated/descoped contracts and statement of safety performance for the prime contractor and all significant subcontractors to be included in the 20-page limit?  Because the lists of contracts are required to include contracts that have been terminated/descoped for convenience in addition to those terminated/descoped for cause, this list could potentially be lengthy with the responses from large company teammates included.  Likewise, large company teammates may have extensive safety information to report to be compliant with the requirements of the DRFP.
A5.Yes the lists of terminated/descoped contracts and statement of safety performance for the prime contractor and all significant subcontractors are to be included in the page limit.  This page limit has been revised in the final RFP.
Q6.  Reference:  Sections L.16(b), Past Performance Volume and L.12(b), Proposal Preparation – General Instructions
Are the list of questionnaire recipients and written consent letters from subcontractors included in the 20-page limit?

A6.  The list of questionnaire recipients is part of the page limit; however, the written consent letters from subcontractors is excluded from the page limit.

Q7.  Reference: Sections I. 4 and I.5
These clauses identify the need for contract personnel to handle hazardous materials in accordance with the latest version of Federal Standard No. 313. 

a)  Will the MSES-II/B contractor be expected to handle any such hazardous materials at their off-site facilities at any time during the contract performance period?

b) If the answer is yes

1) Please identify which such materials will be or are most likely to be handled at the contractors off-site facilities

2) Please identify which such materials, if any, the contractor will be expected to handle at their off-site facilities during the first year of contract performance.

A7.a)  Yes, contractor would be expected to handle hazardous materials such as alcohol, solder, cryogens, general solvents, paint and coatings. 
A7.b) Any of the above could potentially need to be handled at the off-site facilities and/or during the first year of contract performance.
Q8.  Reference:  M.4 Subfactor C, Mission Suitability Factor and L.14 Subfactor C, Mission Suitability Volume
M.4 Subfactor C states that the Mission Assurance Plan will be evaluated for “completeness”, and lists a number of evaluation criteria which map directly to items listed in L.14 that are identified “As part of this plan…”.  
a)  Since these items in L.14 are identified as only part of the plan, specifically what content of the plan in addition to that listed in M.4 Subfactor C, if any, will be part of this “completeness” evaluation?  
b)  Would such additional content be essential for achieving an evaluation above adequate in this area?
A8. a) RFP specifies minimum required.  Any additional features of a quality system associated with offeror's technical approach will be evaluated. 
b)  Plan will be evaluated for strengths and/or weaknesses in accordance with the technical requirements of the contract.
Q9. Reference: B.3(b), Limitation of Indirect Costs
Are there any circumstances other than the causes listed in B.3 (b) that would allow the Government to consider adjustment to the indirect cost ceiling rates?

A9.  Government intends to remove this requirement in the Final RFP.
Q10.  Reference:  B.7, Indefinite Quantity
Are any multiple delivery destinations or multiple performance locations foreseen or known at this time?

A10.  No; however, information will be provided on individual task orders.  As stated in F.1, Place of Performance, services shall be performed at NASA/Goddard Space Flight Center, Other NASA Centers (subject to on-site availability, if required), and Contractor's facilities.
Q11.  Reference:  B.11(a)&(d), Supplemental Task Ordering Procedures and H.7(b)(3), Task Ordering Procedure
a)  Regarding the “Upon Initiation…” language, please clarify what constitutes “initiation” for the contractor to start preparing a task plan.  
b)  Please describe any methods of task “initiation” different from the Government’s request for task plan required by H.7(b)(3).  
A11.  "Upon initiation" refers to the Government's request for a task plan as required by H.7(b)(3).  

Q12.  Reference:  B.11(e), Supplemental Task Ordering Procedures 
Will subcontractors at various levels be provided access to an existing NASA TOMS system?

A12.  No, only prime contractors will have access to TOMS. 

Q13.  Reference:  H.6(c)(1), Limitation of Future Contracting and H.7(c), Task Ordering Procedures.  
H.6(c)(1), states that “If the Contractor, under the terms of this contract, or through the performance of tasks pursuant to this contract, is required to develop specifications or statements of work and such specifications or statements of work are to be incorporated into a solicitation, the Contractor shall be ineligible to perform the work described in that solicitation as a prime or first‑tier subcontractor under an ensuing NASA contract.”  The provision further provides that “NASA shall not unilaterally require the Contractor to prepare such specifications or statements of work under this contract.”  However, H.7(c) states that the contractor “shall” submit a task plan conforming to the Contracting Officer's task request…”

Please clarify whether or not, in the event a request for task plan issued under H.7(b)(3) creates an unfair advantage or potential bias OCI as cited in H.6(c)(1), the Contractor may identify and substantiate such OCI and recuse itself from submitting a task plan pursuant to H.6 (c) which includes such work.
A13.  This interpretation is correct. 
Q14.  Reference:  H.10, Release of Sensitive Information
a)  Will a contractor be notified in advance of NASA releasing sensitive information to 3rd parties so that the contractor can be fully aware of how sensitive information is to be used by the 3rd party in performance of the 3rd parties’ work scope?  
b)  Will the contractor have an opportunity to ensure that the 3rd party has the proper non-disclosure agreements in place?  
c)  Is the assumption correct that the Contractor has no obligation to release contractor-owned proprietary or background intellectual property sensitive information under this order?

A14. No advance notice will be provided.  As stated in H.10(b), "By submitting this proposal or performing this contract, the Contractor agrees that NASA may release to its service providers, their subcontractors, and their individual employees, sensitive information submitted during the course of this procurement, subject to the enumerated protections mandated by the clause at 1852.237-72, Access to Sensitive Information."
Q15.  Reference I.3, Notification of Employee Rights Concerning Payment of Union Dues or Fees   
Will contractors be allowed to specifically consider unique location “Davis-Bacon” pricing impacts on each individual “construction” task/delivery order?

A15.  There should be no construction or public works tasks performed under this contract.
Q16.  Reference:  I.7(b), Notification of Changes 
Are there circumstances when additional time (beyond 7 days) will be allowed for change notifications?

A16.  No.
Q17.  Reference:  L.5, Type of Contract
When will an award of a contract type other than Cost-Plus-Award Fee be considered?

A17.  NASA has determined that a CPAF type contract is appropriate for this requirement. However, if a contractor wishes to take exception to the type of contract they may do so in accordance with L.13(b) Exceptions provisions.  
Q18.  Reference:  Attachment C, Financial Management Reporting Requirements
At the very end of Attachment C it is stated that “The contractor will use the Task Order Management System (TOMS) for submitting …possibly individual task 533’s in the future.”  When during the performance period of this contract might submission of 533’s via TOMS be required?

A18.    This function is not currently available through TOMS; however, it is envisioned to be added sometime in the future.
Q19.  Reference:  FAR 52.215-13, Subcontractor Cost or Pricing Data-modifications:
We request deletion of this clause from the RFP.  There is adequate price competition per the FAR 15.403 (c)(1)(i).  Based on the anticipated quick turnaround for the task orders, it would be impractical (or impossible) to produce a TINA certifiable proposal, which can take 30 to 45 days and approximately $50K for each TINA proposal required.
A19.  The referenced clause will stay as it pertains to modifications after contract award.

Q20.  Reference: B.6, Order Limitations
Are there any circumstances where the Main Schedule or specific Task/Delivery Order Schedules would impose additional limitations on quantities that were not called out in B.6?

A20.  NASA does not anticipate imposing any additional limitations.

Q21.  Reference:  B.6(d), Order Limitations
This provisions states that “...the Contractor shall honor any order exceeding the maximum order limitations in paragraph (b), unless that order (or orders) is returned to the ordering office within 5 days after issuance, with written notice stating the Contractor’s intent not to ship the item (or items) called for and the reasons.”  It may not be feasible/practical to identify and respond within 5 days of issuance of a task/delivery order that we may not be able to honor, especially if that task/delivery order might be assigned to a subcontractor.  If the 5-day response window cannot be extended, please consider changing it to 5 working days rather than 5 calendar days.  

A21.  NASA has revised the requirement to seven (7) days in the final RFP.
Q22.  Reference:  Attachment D, DD 254 
a)  Should contractors include their security factors in proposal NTE pricing or will individual security requirements be an added consideration for each individual task/delivery order.  
b) Will the cost of obtaining any special clearances be an allowable cost?

c)  Please identify for what kinds of work, by SOW function, is it most likely that (Per DD254 Block 13) “…some personnel may require access to classified information up to and including the SECRET level”?

A22a.  Security factors should be included in proposal NTE pricing.  

A22b.  Costs are considered allowable if proposed in accordance with contractor's normal accounting practices and procedures.

A22c.  NASA/GSFC is called upon occasionally to support and review DOD work.  In addition, sometimes NASA programs are within a security area facility where access requires a secret clearance.  The positions most likely to need clearances are the senior level and above discipline engineers.
Q23.  Reference:  H.6, Limitation of Future Contracting
This provision identifies 3 conflict situations under “(b) The nature of the conflict…”.  Only the first and second conflict situations listed in Subparagraph (b) have counterpart restrictions on future contracting included under subparagraph (c).  Please describe the restrictions on future contracting that result from the conflict situation identified in (b)3 of this clause, namely, “The contractor may be tasked to develop and/or maintain NASA program/project financial systems.”  

A23.  The restrictions upon future contracting stated in paragraph (c) may apply to any of the conflicts mentioned under paragraph (b).
Q24.  L.11, Determination of Compensation Reasonableness, subparagraph (d)

It is stated here that “The offeror shall require all service subcontractors…” [who meet certain contract participation levels] “…provide as part of their proposals the information identified in (a) through (c) of this provision”.  M.1 Evaluation of Compensation for Professional Employees discusses many ways in which compensation reasonableness will be evaluated, but makes no mention of how you will evaluate the prime and subcontractors compensation plans with respect to one another.  Please describe how this evaluation will be performed, including the relative importance of the comparison of total compensation versus the comparison of individual benefits.
A24. Offeror's overall compensation plan (including prime and significant subcontractors) will be evaluated for its ability to attract and retain a qualified staff.
Q25.  Reference:  B.1, Deliverable Requirements, Item 2, B.11, Supplemental Task Ordering Procedures (e), and Attachment C, Financial Management Reporting Requirements
There seems to be no readily accessible source of information describing GSFC’s Task Order Management System (TOMS).  Please identify such a source which would include explanations of TOMS functions, formats and interfaces. 

A25.  The TOMS system is a web based system – no interfaces are necessary.  It is accessible through the internet and only available upon obtaining a user id and password.  The site is located at https://nasatoms.gsfc.nasa.gov
Q26.  Reference:  M.6, Past Performance Evaluation Factor
It is stated that “Each of the adjectival ratings below has a ‘performance’ component and a ‘relevance’ component,” yet all of the language describing each of the adjective ratings is focused only on performance evaluations.  Please clearly explain how these adjective ratings will be used to evaluation Past Performance relevance.
A26.  Each adjective rating includes a reference to relevancy as well as performance.  M.6 also states "In assessing relevance, the Government will consider the degree of similarity in size, content, and complexity to the requirements in this solicitation, as well as how current is the past performance."
Q27.  Reference:  NASA FAR Clause 1816.505-70(C)

Will the Government consider issuing end item task orders using various contract types (i.e. fixed price or time and materials) or will all task orders be CPAF? If various types are issued, how will profit/fee be addressed in other than CPAF task orders? 

A27.  NASA has determined that a CPAF IDIQ type contract is appropriate for this requirement; accordingly, task orders will be CPAF.
Q28.  Reference:  E.5, Inspection of Research and Development-Cost Reimbursement
Due to inherent, significant differences in terms of contractor risk, performance, deliverables, and AF conditions as set forth in G.5 and G.6, between end item task orders and service task orders, we request that the first sentence of Sections E.5 (f) be replaced with the following two sentences: 

“At any time during performance of a service task order, but no later than 60 days (or such other time as may be specified in the contract) after acceptance of all designs, drawings, reports and deliverables under the task order, the Government may require the Contractor to replace or to correct work not meeting contract requirements.”

“At any time during performance of an end item task order under the contract, but in no event later than 30 days after acceptance of the delivered end item, the Government may require the Contractor to replace or to correct work not meeting contract requirements.”
A28.  No, the sections will remain as stated in the RFP.
Q29.  Reference:  G.6 Award Fee for End Item Contracts.

G.6(c)(4) states, “All interim (and provisional, if applicable) fee payments will be superseded by the fee determination made in the final award fee evaluation.” Does the phrase “final award fee evaluation” refer to the final award fee evaluation of an individual end item task order?

A29.  No.  The award fee is done at the contract level.
Q30.  The task ordering provisions of B.5, Ordering and the IDIQ provisions in B.7 seem to imply that a task order exceeding the five-year period could be issued at any time until COB of the final day of the original fifth year term. Given that this solicitation will result in an IDIQ contract having independent and unrelated task orders (rather than a single contiguous project), and if the correct interpretation of G.6 is expressed in question 9 above?, would the Government, consider final award fee evaluation six months after the end of an end item task order? 

A30.  Yes 
Q31.  Will the RTOs have percentages applied to who is doing the work?  For instance, will they say 50% prime, 10% large business sub, 40% small business sub, etc.?  Evidentially, the MAS procurement worked in this manner.

A31.  The Government will not predetermine how work is apportioned between the prime and any subcontractors.  It is the prime offeror's responsibility to determine this apportionment.  
Q32.  Reference:  B.3, Limitation of Indirect Costs.

Can fringe be excluded from the caps in order to recruit the best workforce?

A32.  The government intends to remove B.3, Limitation of Indirect Costs, from the final RFP.
Q33.  Can you elaborate on the requirement to "not use tables in lieu of narrative."  We usually put our past performance data in table format to show contract type, value, period of performance, etc.  
A33.  It is acceptable to place past performance data in a table format.
Q34.  Reference:  L.11, Determination of Compensation Reasonableness
Does the government anticipate union agreements as part of the MSES II/B effort?
A34.   This requirement is not considered a follow-on to an existing procurement.  Accordingly, there are no existing union agreements.  
Q35.  Reference:  L.12, Proposal Preparation –General Instructions (c) 1 (pages 96 and 118).

The solicitation number NNG06140050R seems to be in error.  Should this be NNG06140050J?
A35. The draft solicitation number is NNG06140050J.  The final RFP number is NNG06140050R.
Q36.  Will the government provide the names of the Source Selection Official and the Source Evaluation Board members?

A36.  No.
Q37.  Reference:  Section L.14 Subfactor C Management Plan (page 105)
Instruction states that the offeror shall discuss plans for staffing a qualified workforce including any incumbent capture and provide the basis for this capture rate. Should the offerors plan for existing projects to transition to the MSES II/B contract?  If so, will the government identify the programs/projects planned for transfer to the MSES II/B contract?

A37.  No to both questions.  Expectation is that MSES II/B is for new programs and not existing work that is transferred.
Q38.  Reference:  Section L.14 Subfactor C Management Plan (page 105)
With regard to the incumbent capture rate, does the government expect only past experience on incumbent capture?

A38.  This wording is incorrect.  The RFP will be revised to remove any reference to incumbent capture.

Q39.  Reference: Exhibit 8 – RTO 1 and Enclosure to Exhibit 8 Section 6.2 Development Schedule
Exhibit 8 shows “Task Start Date:  07/01/06 and Task End Date:  12/31/07.” Since the start shown is before the anticipated start date of the contract, does the government intend for the offeror assume the task at contract start (after the task has begun)?  If not, we recommend changing the task to future 18-month duration (including tentative review dates) for pricing considerations. 

A39.  The Government intends to revise the task dates in the final RFP.
Q40.  Reference:  Section L.15, Cost Volume, Section 1, Instructions (page 109)
Paragraph ending in “Labor rates in Exhibits 2A and 2B and those unburdened, current rates set forth in Enclosure A.”  Enclosure A does not contain rate information.  Is this an oversight or is the instruction in error?

A40.  The Government intends to revise this language in the final RFP.

Q41.  Reference:  Section L.15, Cost Volume, Section 1, Instructions (page 109)
The government is requesting an explanation of variance between the proposed direct labor and the direct labor presented in Enclosure A. However, Enclosure A does not contain any direct labor rates.  Please advise.

A41.  This information is incorrect.  The Government has revised this language in the final RFP.
Q42.  Reference:  Exhibit 4A
Should Exhibit 4A be corrected to specify “Overhead Onsite Bid Rate” and “Overhead Offsite Bid Rate” instead of ceiling rate?
A42.  Yes, the correction will be made in the final RFP.

Q43.  Reference:  Exhibit 4B
Should Exhibit 4B be corrected to specify “G&A Expense Ceiling Rate” and “Other (Identify) Ceiling Rate” instead of bid rate?
A43.  Yes; however, the Government has deleted the requirement for ceiling rates in the final RFP.

Q44.  Reference:  Section B.1, Deliverable Requirements and C.2, Reports of Work
There appears to be a conflict between the Monthly Report and Final Task Report distribution to the CO requiring only letter transmittal while C.2 indicates that the entire Monthly Report shall be sent to the CO.  Please advise.

A44.  Government intends to revise C.2, Reports of Work in the final RFP to clarify only letter transmittal is required on CO distribution of subject reports.
Q45.  Reference:  Draft PEP (B.3 3) and RFP B.1, Deliverable Requirements, Item 11 
References to Equal Opportunity Reports and Employer Information Report EEO-1.  Should these be the same report or does the EEO-1 need to be added to the B.1 reporting requirements?

A45.  EEO-1 is one of the reports driven by deliverable listed in Section B1.
Q46.  In the SOW Function 2, Section G. Manufacturing Engineering:
a)       Does NASA expect that the contractor will provide any “assembly support,” “fabrication,” or other manufacturing work required by this SOW element at a contractor site?
b)      If yes, when – in relationship to contract start - will a facility to accommodate this work be required?
c)       If an off-site facility will be required to support this work, what will be the required size or capacity of the lab?
d)      If an off-site facility will be required, how close must it be to GSFC?
A46.   
a)  Yes, the vendors need access to a manufacturing shop.
b)  The contractor needs to be able to fulfill the requirements of the SOW on the date the contract takes effect.  It is currently not known when a site will be needed in performance of a particular task.
c)  No requirements.  Contractor needs to either possess or be able to obtain facilities as required in performance of task orders.
d)  No requirements specified.
Q47.  What kind of off-site facility in proximity to GSFC does the contractor need in the first year of the contract?  Over the life of the contract? 
A47.   See answers provided under #46.
Q48. What was your rationale for the SOW elements NOT included in the MSES II/B SOW vs. the MSES-II/A SOW?

A48  The MSES II/B SOW contains the core mechanical systems work thus promoting the growth of a second mechanical systems contractor.  The other disciplines are included because they closely tie in to our mechanical systems work.
Q49.  The mission systems engineering and instrument systems engineering portions of the SOW overlap with the current METS SOW.  Please clarify how METS and MSES IIB are different in this regard as it appears that these disciplines are beyond the scope of mechanical engineering services.

A49.  All 3 large support contracts MSES, METS and ESES have overlap.  MSES II/B differs in systems engineering in that it focuses on the mechanical systems aspects of mission systems and instrument systems engineering.
Q50.  Reference: SOW Section G2, Manufacturing Engineering

Is work in this area to be done on-site at GSFC only?  If not, what type of facility and tools will the contractor need to support this work?

A50.  The MSES II/B contractor would not perform manufacturing on-site at GSFC, only off-site.  The type of facility anticipated would be a standard machining facility.

Q51.  Other than the specific requirement for hardware storage, what "technical facilities" do you expect the contractor to provide at off-site locations, e.g., fabrication, testing, coatings, vacuum chambers, thermal chambers, etc.  Please answer for the first year of the contract and for contract performance after the first year.
A51.  The contractor must be able to meet the requirements of the SOW on the day that the contract takes effect.  NASA will work with the contractor so that they are not expected to ramp up to the full extent of the contract the first year.  The contractor is not expected to provide their own facilities to duplicate the facilities that we have at GSFC.  They must have access to and/or be able to subcontract the work to another vendor to meet the requirements of each task.
Q52.  Can it be assumed that when you say "provide support" in the SOW, you mean on-site support at GSFC?

A52. No, it refers to both on-site and off-site support.

Q53.  Please elaborate on the ISO9000 requirement expected for the bidders.

A53.  Offerors need to be compliant with ISO 9001.  

Q54.  MSES II/B's original scope appeared to be the "out of house" portion of MSES.  MSES II/B now appears to be a subset of MSES II/A.  Please clarify the Government's intentions for having separate MSES procurements.

A54.  Original discussions were having MSES II/B for out of house work; however, this idea has changed.  Government's intent is to give new work to MSES II/B.  The intent of the separate contract is also to develop an additional source for the mechanical systems support.  

Q55.  Please identify which SOW elements will be performed on-site at GSFC, or predominately so.

A55.  This will be decided on a case by case basis.  
Q56.  Reference:  RTO #2

Who provides "ETU-Level" electronics?

A56.  The flight electronics provider.
Q57.  Can you say anything more about the government pricing model?  E.g., is it based on an assumed number of FTE's by labor category over the life of the contract?

A57.  It is based on labor hours by category for the 5-year period of performance.

Q58.  Will there be a tour of GSFC labs and facilities applicable to MSES II/B?

A58.  No as we don't see the need.  No MSES II/B contractor personnel will be working in the GSFC labs.  That function will remain with the MSES II/A contract.  This is so NASA doesn't have two different contractors providing support for one lab, especially since some of the equipment requires only one person to operate.
Q59.  Do you want to see names and resumes for proposed management positions?

A59.  No.
Q60.  Reference:  Section L.15, Cost Volume
Section L.15 refers to incumbent labor rates in Enclosure A.  Will this be issued with the final RFP?
A60.  NASA views the MSES II/B as a new requirement.  The intent is to remove any reference to incumbent capture in final RFP?
Q61.  Reference:  Section L.15, Cost Volume  (pg 111)

It states that Section 5 of Attachment B shall contain the PDs for the DL categories in Section 1 (Prime's DL categories).  Do you also need the PD's for the sub DL categories shown in Section 4 of Attachment B?

A61.  Yes, the final RFP will be amended to require PDs on significant subcontracts.
Q62.  Reference: Exhibit 5

Should Exhibit 5 of the price model include 6 contract years?

A62.  No.
Q63.  Will you post the attendee list and slide presentation on the MSES II/B web site?

A63.  Yes, we have posted this information both on Fedbizops and NAIS where the draft RFP is located.

Q64.  Will the government identify the intended COTR for the MSES II/B contract?

A64.  A COTR has not yet been assigned.
Q65.  Reference:  L8, Site Visit 
Who should offerors contact to arrange site visits of where the services will be performed?  Which GSFC buildings, facilities, and laboratories will be available to tour during the pre-solicitation conference?

A65.  No site visits are anticipated at the present time.  This reference has been removed from the final RFP.
Q66.  Reference: L.13, Offer Volume
Will the government require Offer Volume information from major and minor subcontractor or only the prime offeror?  
A66.  No, this information is required of the prime only.
Q67.  At the pre-solicitation conference, it was stated that there would be no facility tour for MSES II/B because GSFC does not expect any MSES II/B work to take place in on-site labs.   

a)  By “labs,” do you mean any and all facility space that is used for anything other than office space for staff to perform their work with the aid of a personal computer or workstation?  If not, please define what you mean by “labs.”

b)  If the on-site MSES II/B employees are not working in labs, what will they be doing?

c)  What difference(s) between the MSES II/A and MSES II/B RFPs explains why MSES II/A employees will be using GSFC labs and MSES II/B employees will not?
d)  Please explain how this identified difference in the RFPs leads to the conclusion that MSES II/A employees will use the GSFC labs and MSES II/B employees will not. 

A67.
a)  Labs are defined as active labs such as the Materials Laboratories, Coatings and Contamination Laboratories, and Manufacturing labs operated by code 547.  Other labs such as mechanical systems integration areas may be used by the MSES II/B contractor.  The contractor may have to support hardware under test in facilities such as 7/10/15/29.
b)  Carrying out all other aspects of the MSES II/B SOW requirements.
c)  The MSES II/B SOW does not call out the work that is required in labs like the MSES II/A SOW.

d)  The MSES II/B SOW does not call out the work that is required in labs like the MSES II/A SOW.
Q68.  At the pre-solicitation conference, the RTO 2 shown on the screen indicated that there would be no long-distance travel. 

a).  If this RTO is truly “representative” of off-site work to be performed under this contract, does this mean that all off-site MSES II/B work must be performed in close proximity of GSFC?

b).   If not, what work can be done at a “long distance” from GSFC?

c).   Does the answer to item “b” vary across the life of the contract?  If yes, describe how.

A68.

a)  No, it states that we are not requiring long distance travel.
b) This is subject to offerors approach.  NASA has no requirements for contractors' facility to be in close proximity of GSFC.

c) For purposes of RTO 2, long distance travel is not anticipated to vary.

Q69.  At the pre-solicitation conference, it was stated that contractors could continue to meet with GSFC customers until the final RFP was released.  Later that same day, our team was denied a visit and was informed “We’re no longer accepting visitors regarding MSES-II/B,” apparently indicating that a black-out had actually begun.  Please clarify the actual policy for MSES-II/B visits. 

A69.  Offerors are free to meet with Procurement representatives to discuss the work that they perform.  Technical personnel will not be holding meetings with vendors.
Q70.  Section L.14, Subfactor C (Management Plan) specifies that “The offeror shall provide a detailed phase-in plan which shall clearly demonstrate an ability to assume full contract responsibility on the effective date of the contract.”  A Phase-in Plan usually describes the transition of current tasks and/or personnel from one contract/contractor to a new contract/contractor, and all of the associated facilities, equipment, and training of personnel.  We have two questions about the MSES II/B Phase-in Plan:

a. Because MSES II/B is a new contract with no existing tasks or personnel, what would the offeror be phasing in (transitioning) for this contract?  
b. Because there are no existing tasks or personnel, are we correct to assume that at the beginning of the Phase-in period the Government will identify all tasks to be initiated on the MSES II/B start date?

A70.
a)  NASA has removed the phase-in requirement in the final RFP.   
b)  NASA has removed the phase-in requirement in the final RFP.  Tasks will be identified throughout the life of the contract.

Q71.  The RFP states in section L.15, Cost Volume, page 109, 5th paragraph, "Any significant subcontractor expected to exceed 25% of the proposed cost of any Representative Task Order shall provide the same cost exhibits and supporting information that is requested from the prime offeror".  If the significant subcontractor or Team Member does not meet this threshold do they still need to submit a cost volume with proprietary information (rational and composition of indirect rates, escalation, etc.) to GSFC or will the sanitized information submitted to the prime to complete the costing be sufficient?

A71.   The sanitized information submitted to the prime is sufficient for subcontractors who do not meet the stated threshold.
Q72.  If our accounting practice is to charge task management and finance support as a direct labor charge and NOT as an ODC, do you still want us to show it as an ODC in exhibit 6 and 10 or add a contract DL category to show it?  If you want it as an ODC, do you want us to burden the DL costs with fringe and overhead but not G&A in the amount shown on the ODC line?
A72.  Cost should be charged in accordance with offeror's standard accounting practices.
Q73.  RTO 1 states that the start date is 7/1/06.  The RTO pricing model calls for each contract year to be reported separately.  If the anticipated contract start date is November 30, 2006, how do I show the RTO period of 7/1/06 - 11/30/06 in my pricing model for the RTO's?

A73.  The start date for the pricing model will be revised in the final RFP.

Q74.  We believe in the first paragraph of RTO1 and RTO2 the sentences "Incoming light from the telescope optics tertiary mirror is shared among the three units/spectrometers" should be deleted.

A74.  The above sentence in the RTOs should in fact be deleted.  It will be removed in the final RFP.

Q75.  There is an inconsistency between the schedule for RTO 2 and the schedule shown in Enclosure 3 (of Exhibit 8 Enclosure) for the LOO instrument development.  Which is correct?

A75.  The Enclosure for Exhibit 8 has been revised with the final RFP.
Q76.  There is an inconsistency in the milestones and schedule for RTO 1 (i.e., I-PDR within 18 months from task start date) and the schedule shown in Enclosure 3, Section 6.2, Development Schedule for LOO instrument development (I-PDR is selection + 5 months and I-CDR selection + 16 months).  Which schedule is correct?

A76.  The Enclosure for Exhibit 8 has been revised with the final RFP. 
Q77.  Reference:  MSES II/B Exhibit 8: RTO 1, Tentative Review Dates:  "Instrument Preliminary Design Review: 11/07"

This date is in conflict with the information presented in the MSES II/B Enclosure for Exhibit 8 RTO's, LOO Payload PIP, document 424-PROP-000002, section 6.  Instrument/Payload Management.  This document states that Instrument Preliminary Design Review is scheduled for 4/15/07, i.e. approx. 7 months prior to the date mentioned in Exhibit 8 RTO-1.  Is the Preliminary Design Review to be held in 11/07 or on 4/15/07?

A77.  The Enclosure for Exhibit 8 has been revised with the final RFP.
Q78.  MSES II/B Exhibit 8:  RTO 2, Statement of Work:  u.  "Deliver a Flight TTM and EGSE for integration no later than June 30, 2011."  This deadline is in conflict with the information presented in the MSES II/B Enclosure for Exhibit 8, RTO's LOO Paylod PIP, document 424-PROP-00002, Section 6. Instrument/Payload Management.  This document states that LRD (Launch Readiness Decision) is scheduled 10/15/2010, i.e. approx. 8 months prior to the above mentioned delivery of the TTM.  Did you intend to schedule the Launch Readiness Decision, as mentioned in the Enclosure for Exhibit 8, prior to delivery for integration, as mentioned in Exhibit 8?

A78.  The Enclosure for Exhibit 8 has been revised with the final RFP.


Q79.  We would like to request a change on the page limit for the Mission Suitability volume in the MSES II B to 120 pages.
A79.  The page limit is changed in the final RFP.











Dated  6/13//06
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